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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

Holding a Criminal Term
Grand Jury Sworn in on October 31, 2-0_03_

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

V.

1. LEWIS LIBBY,
also known as “SCOOTER LIBBY”

g@ﬁﬁ‘@& £, RBW INDICTMENT | |
s o FILED IN OPEN COURT
W COUNT ONE | | |
o (Obstruction of Justice) OCT 28 2005

THE GRAND JURY CHARGES: CLERK, U.S. DISTRIGT COURT

1. Attimes material to this indictment:

Defendant’s Em loyment and.Res

) Criminat No.

). GRAND JURY ORIGINAL.

)y Count 1: Obstruction of Justice (18 U.S.C. § 1503)
) . o
}Counts 2-3: False Statements (18 U.S.C. § 1001(a)}(2))
) | ‘ >

) Counts 4-5: Perjury (18 U.S.C. § 1623)

- DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

onsibilities

a. Beginning on or about January 20, 2001, and-continuing through the date of

- thisindictmént, defendant 1. LEWIS LIBBY, also known as “SCOOTER LIBBY,” wasemployed

as Assistant ito the _Presidént of the United States, Chief of Staff o the Vice President of the United

States, and Assistant to the Vice President for National Security Affairs. In the course of his work,

LIBBY had "rfrequent access fo classified information and ﬁ"equf:nﬂy spoke with officials of the U.S.

intelligence _ci{:om_munity, as well as other government officials, regarding sensitive national security

matters.

b. In comnection with his role as a senior government official with

responsibilities for national security matters, LIBBY held security clearances entitling him to access
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| to. classified iﬁfoﬁliation. As a,pcr's_On-wi_th_. sucﬁ Qieafénoes,"LIBBY was -dblig‘:—ited“ by applicabie'

laws and regulations, including Title 18, United States Code, Section 793, and. Exequtive-Qrder

12958 (as modified by Executive Order 13292), not to disclose classified information to persons not
authorized to receive such i.n_fennaﬁonz, and otherwise to exﬁrcise proper care to safeguard classified
information against nnauthorized disclosure. On or about January 23, 2001, LIBBY executed a

written “Ciassiﬁed Information Nondisclosure Agreement,” stating in part that “I understand and

accept tha_t;by being granted access to classified information, special confidence and trust shall be

placedin mje by tﬁe U_m'ted States Government,” and that “Thave been advised that the unauthorized

discio_'sure, omauthorized retention, or ﬁegli gent handling of. classiﬁéd iﬁoMon byme could cauge

damage or irreparable injury to the United States or could be used to advantage by a foreign nation.”

The Centyral Intelligencé Agency

C. The Central Intelligence Agency (CIA) was an agency of the United States
whose mission was to colllect, | produce, and dissémiﬁate micligence and counterintelligence
: infc;nnation-t_o officers and dep_artmenﬁs of the United States govemment, includigg thé.President,

the National Securi‘éy.Counc—il, and the Joint Chiefs of Staff. |
d. The responsibii_iti’es of certain CIA employees require(i that their association
with the CIA be kept secret; asa fr-esuh, 'fsh_e fact that these individuals were employed by the CIA was
classified. Disclo-sure ofthe fact that such indjyidﬁals were employed by the CIA had the potential
o damage the national security in ways that ranged frgm. pfeventing. the future use of those
individualsinacovert cap_acity, to compr@misin:g inﬁeﬂigence—g_athéring methods and _Qpe:cations, and

endangering the safety of CIA employees and those who dealt with them.
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Joseph Wilson and Valerie Plame Wilson

e | Joseph Wilson (“Wilspn”) wasa former career State Departmént official who
had held évan_'ety‘ éf posts, including United States ArﬁbasSador._ n2002, aftef an inquiry to the CIA
by the Vice President concemi'ng certain intelli genée repbrtin_g_, the CIA decided on its own initi.atix;-e
1o send Wilson io the coumﬁy of Niger té investigate allegations involving Traqi efforts to acquire
uranium yqilqwcake,_ a pr_oc.eésed form of uranium ore. Wilson orally reported his findings to the
* CIA upon his return.
f. Joseph Wilson was man*i-‘ed to Valerie Plame Wil-sqn (*Valerie Wilson’?). At |
- all relevant times from Jam;a;ry- 1, 2002 through July 2003, Valéri-é Wilson was em:;oloyed by the
CIA, and hér employment status was classified. Prior to July 14, 200.3,_ Valerie Wilson’s afﬁﬁaﬁ@n
with the CIA was not commoﬁ knowledge outside the intéllig'ence community. |

Events Leading up to July 2003

2. On or about January 28, 2003, President George W. Bush delivered his ‘St_ate. ofthe
Union address which includ'f_:d sixteen words asserting that “"_-I_hc Bﬂti sh gqvemment has leamed that
Saddam Hussein receﬁtiy sought si gnjﬁé-anf}quantiﬁes of uranium from Afiica.”

3. On May 6, 2003, the New York Times published a column by Nichola_s Kristof which
digputed -the; ‘gccu;r_acy of the “sixteen words™ in the State ofthe U,l;_ion address. The colm_r—eportéd
that, .fol}owin g arequest from the Vice President’s office for an investigation of allegations that Irag
sought to buy vratium from Niger, an unnamed fonner ambassador was sent on a inp to Niger in
2002 to :investigaté the allegations. Accordi_ng ‘Id the columan, t-he ahlba'ssacior-repor.ted .baékto the

- C1A and State Department in early 2002 that the allegaﬁons were unequi'voéally wrong and based

on forged documents.



4. On or about May 29, 2003, in the White House, LIBBY asked an Under Secretary
of State (.“_Undé; S.e_cre_tar)ﬂ’) for information concerning the vnnamed ambassador’s travel to Niger
to investigate claims about Tragi efforts to. acquire uramum yellowcake. The Under Secretary
thereafier directed the State Department’s Bureau of Intelligence and Research to prepare a report
concerning the ambassador and his trip. The Under Secretary provided LIBBY with interim oral
reports in late May and early June 2003, and advised LIBBY that Wilson was the former ambassador
who took the trip.

5. On or about June 9, 2003, anumber of pla;ssiﬁad documents from the CIA were faxed
to the Office of the Vice President to the personal attention of LIBBY and another person in the
Office of the Vice President. The faxed documents, which were marked as 'classiﬁ.cd, discussed,

among other things, Wilson and his trip to Niger, but did not mention Wilson by name. After

_ receiving these documents, LIBBY and one or moye other persons in the Office of the Vice President

handwrote the names “Wilson™ and ‘;Joe leson” on the documents.

6. Onor abou-t June 11 or 12, 2003, the Uﬁd-,er Secretary of State orally advised LIBBY
in the White House that, in sum and sub-siaﬂce, Wilson’s wife worked at the CIA and that State
Department persbnnel were jsaying that-Wﬂ.son’s,__Wiffe was involved in the pl_anning of his trip.

7. On or about June 11, 2003, LIBBY 'spoke Wlﬂ’l a Ssnior officer of the CIA to ask

about the origin and circumstances of Wilson’s trip, and was advised by the CIA officer:that

\ Wilson’s wife worked at the CIA and was believed to be responsible for sending Wilson on thetrip. |

8. Prior to June 12, 2003, Washington Post reporter Walter Pincus contacted the Office
of the Vice President in connection with a story he was writing abowt Wilson’s trip. LIBBY

participated in discussions in the Office of the Vice President concerning how to respond to Pincus.
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9. Onorabout June 12,2003, LIBBY was advised by the Vice President of the United

- States that Wilson’s wife worked at the Central Intelligence Agency in the C-ountﬂrproliferaiion

Division. LIBBY understood that the Vice President had _leam_ed this infprmation from the CIA,

10..  OnlJune 12,2003, the Washington Postpublished an article by reporter Walter Pincus

about Wilson’s trip to Niger, which described Wilson as.a retired ambassador but not byname, and

reported that the CIA had sent him to Niger afier an aide to the Vice President raised questions about

purported Iraqi efforts to acquire uranium. Pincus’s article questioned the accuracy of the “sixteen

_ WOl‘dS,-” and stated that the retired ambassador had reported to the CIA that the uranium purchase

story was false.

11, On or about June 14, 2003, LIBBY met with a CIA briefer. During their
convérsatic}n he expressed displeasure _t_hat CIA Qfﬁcials were making .commént_s {o reporters critical
ofthe Vice Pre;sident’s office, and_d_js'cussed with the briefer, among other things, “J oe Wilson™ and
his wi-fe; “Valieﬁe Wilson,” in the context of’Wilson’.‘s trip to Niger.

12.  Onor about June 19, 2003, an article appeared in The Ne?vﬂepubl ic magazme online -
entitle(i “The First Cgsué;lzy.' The Selling of tﬁe I}*aq War.” Among other things, the grti‘clc
queétiﬁned the “sixterén- wdrds” and stated that following a request for ﬁ_lfon'nation from the Vice

President, the CIA had asked an unnamed ambassador io travel to Niger to investigate -allegations

that Iraq had sought uranium from Niger. The article included a quotation attributed to the unnamed. -

-ambassador alleging that adiministration officials “knew the Niger story was a flat-out lie.” The -

article also was critical of .how"t;he administration, including the Office of the Vice President,
portrayed intelligence concerning Iragi capabilities with regard to weapons.of mass destruction, and

accused the administration of suppressing dissent from the intelligence agencies on this topic.



13.  Shortly after _p#]biication of the article in The New _Iéepubfic,_ LIBBY spoke by
tel‘ephoﬁe with his. ﬂlen Pn_'ﬁcipal Deputy and discussed the a:tiéle. ‘ That official asked LIBBY
- whether information about Wilson’s trip coulﬂ be shared with the press to rebut the allegations that
~ the Vice Pfésid_erit had sent Wilson. LIBBY responded that there would be complications at the CIA
Cin disclosing_ that infc;rmation publicly, and that he could not discuss the matter ont a non-secute

telephone lime. ..

14. On or about June 23, 2003, LIBBY met with New ¥ orklﬁmes reporter Judith Miller,
.During this meeting LIBBY was critical of the CIA, and d.isp'ara_ged ﬁhat he tenpéd “selective
leaking” by the CIA concerning intelligence mattefs. Tn discussing the CIA’s h_andliﬁg of Wilson’s.
1ip to Niger, LIBBY infoﬁned her that Wilson’s wife might work-af a bureau of the CIA |

The Julv 6 “Op Ed” Article by Wilson

-15. On July 6, 20*03 the New York Times published an Op—Ed article by Wilson entitled
“What 1 Dxdn’t Find in Afnra ” Also on July 6, 2003, the Washington Post published an arncie.
about Wﬂs:on $2002 tn"p to Niger, which _arf:xcle was based in part upon an interview of Wilson.
- Also on July 6, Wilson appeared as a guest on the television iﬁterview-shOW “Meet the Presé.” In
Vhis Op—E_d _arft_icle and interviews in i)rint and on te}cvision,' Wilsornt assert.ed, among other{hings,. that
he had _i:aken;a trip to Niger at the request of the CIA. in February 2002 to investigate-allegations that
Jrag had sought or obtained uraninm ycllowéak_e from Niger, and that he doubted*]r&q nad obtained
uraniarm fr0nf1 Niger recenﬂy, for .a.nymber ofreasons. Wilson stated that he_b.elieved, based on his
understandmég of goVemment-prﬁ@edUres, that the Office of the Vice President was.advised of the

| results of his/trip.



LIBBY’s Actions Following Wilson’s July 6 “Op Ed” Column

16.  On or about July 7, 2003, LIBBY' had lunch with the then White | House Press
Secretary and advised the ?ress S’ecretam_'y that Wilson’s Wi-fe worked af the CIA and notéd ,_tEat such
information wés not widely known.

17. Onoraboutthe momingrof-J uly 8, 2003, LIBBY met with New York .Times.reporter
Judith Miller. When the conversation tm-ne& té the subject.of Joseph Wilson, LIBBY asked that the
information LIBBY provided on the topic of Wilson be attributed fo a"‘former.Hii{l staffer” rather
than to a “senior administration official,” as had been the understanding with tespect to other

| infonnatiw;)n'that 'LIBBY_ provided to Miller during this meeting. LIBB'Y_ thercafter discussed with

Miller Wiléj_on’s trip- and criticized the CIA feporti_ng_ concerning Wils_oﬁ’_s trip_. During. this
discussion, LIBBY advised Miller of his belief that Wilson’s -Wife_worked for the CIA.

15._ Also onor ,about:JuIy 8, 2003, LIBBY met W“_ith-the Counsel to the Vice President
m an ante_rlqpm outside the Vice Presi_deﬁt’s Office. During their bef convepsatiqn, LIBBY asked
the Counselto the Viée President, in sum and substance, What-papem;irk there would be at the CIA
if an emploje_e"s spouse undertook an overseas ip. |

19.  Not earfier than June 2003, bﬁt on or before July 8, 2003, the Assistant to the Vice
President for Public Affairs learned ﬁ'br_ri another governﬁent ofﬁc-iai_ that Wi}.son’;; wife worked at
the CIA, and advised LIBBY of ttis information,

20. " On or about July 10, 2_003, LIBBY spoke.to NBC Washington Bureay Chief Tim:
Russert to complain about press cdvérage of LYBBY by an MSNBCreporter. LiBBY did not discuss

Wilson’s wife with Russert.



21. Omorabout July 10 or July 11, 2003, LIBBY spoke to.a_éen,i,or official in the White
_ House (“Official A”) who advised LIBBY of a conversaﬁon()fﬁqial -Afhad eariier that week with
columnist Robert Novak in which Wilson’s wifc was discussed ﬁs a CIA employee involved in
Wilson’s trip. LIBBY: Wa_s advised by Official A that Novak would be writing a story about
Wilson’s wife. | |

22. On orabout July 12, 2003, LIBBY flow with the Vice President and others to and
from Norfolk, Virginia, on Air Force Two., On his-fetur_n trip ) LIBBY discﬁsséd with other ofﬁé_i-al;s
aboard the plane what LIBEY¥ should say in response to cértain pending media inguiries, inchuding
questions from Time repqrte;r‘Matthew Cooper. -

23. On_br about }ul_y 12,2003, in_. the afte_mocjn, LIBEY spoke by telcphdne_to Cooper,
who asked Whe.th-er LIBBY‘ had h_ea:d.that Wilson’s wife was involved in sending Wilson-on the trip
to Niger. LIBBY confirmed to Cooper, without élabor&tion or quali_ﬁcation, that he had heard this
infommtion too. | |

24,  On or about July 12, 20(_)3-,_ in the late afternoon, LIBBY spoke by‘tel.ephone with
- Yudith Miller of the New York Times and discussed W;il_lson’-s wife, and that she worked at the CIA

The 'Criﬁﬁnal Investigation

25.  Omnor about Sepfember 26, 2003, the Department of Justice authotized the ngcral
Bp.re'_au of Investigation (“FBI”) to commence a criminal investigation into the possible imauthorized
disclosure ofclassified infqnfmatéon regarding the disclosure of Valeric Wilson s affiliation with the

CIA to various Teporters in the Spl_'ing of£2003.




26. - As part of the criminal investigation, LIBBY was interviewed by Special Agents of

the FBI on or about October 14 and November 26, 2003, each time in the presence of his counsel.

a.

- During these interviews, LIBBY stated to FBI Special Agents that:

During a conversation with Tim Russert of NBC News on July 10 or 11,
2003, Russért asked LIBBY if LIBBY was aware that Wilson’s wife worked
for the CIA. LIBBY tesponded to Russert that he did not know .that, and
Russert replied that all the reporters knew 1t LIBBY was surprised by fhis
statement because, while speaking with Russert, LIBBY did not recall\that
he previously had Jearned abc_:ufWﬂ'son’s wife’s employment from the Vice
President, .‘

Duﬁng a conversation with Matthew Co’ope_r.qf Time magazine on or about

July 12, 2003, LIBBY told Cooper that reporters were telling | the

A administration that Wilson’s wife worked for the CIA, b:ut that LIBBY did

not know if this was true; and
LIBBY did not discuss Wilsgn’é wife with New York Times reporter Judith

Miller during a meeting with Miller on or ébout- Juljf 8, 2003.

27.  Beginningin or about January 2004, and continuing until the date of this indictment,

- Grand Jury 03-3 sitting in the District of Columbia cenducted an invésti_gati:on (“the Grand Jury

Investigation™) into possible violations of federal criminal Jaws, including: Title 50, United States

-Code, Section 421 (disclosure of the identity of covert intelligence pgrsoﬁﬂcl); and Title 18-, United

~ States ‘Code, Sections 793 (improper disclosure of national defense i;}formation), 1001 (false

. statements), 15 03 (6bstm¢tion— of justice), and 1623 (perjury).
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28. Amajor fpgﬁusof the Grand T ur‘yilnyestigatidn. was o detérmine_wﬁi'ch government .
officials had disclosed to the media prior to July 14, 2003 iannnation concerning the affiliation of
Valerie Wilson with the CIA, and the nature, timing, extent, and purpose.of s:uch disci_dsures, as well
as whether any official making such a disclosure did so knowing that the employment of Valerie
Wilson by the CIA was classified iﬁfom;aﬁon.

29, Duing the course of the Grand Jury I’_nvesti_g‘ation,.thé following matters, among
others, were material to the Grand Jury Investigation:
i,  When, and themannerand means by which, defendant LIBBY learned
that Wilson’s wife was efnployed by the CIA;
11 -~ Whether and wilen LIBBY disclosed to members of the media that
‘Wilson’s wife was employed by the CIA; |
iii.  The language gsed by LIBBY in disclosing any such: information to
the media, includin g whether LIBBY exp_-réss-cd uncgrtainty about the acpuracf of any ihfonnéﬁon
he may have disclosed, or described where he obtained the information;
iv.  LIBBY's hlolwledge asto whether any information he disclosed was
classified at the time he disclosed it; and |
| V. Whether LIBBY was candid with Special Agents of the Federal
Bureaun of Investigation in de;sci‘ibill’g.his converéaﬁqns with the other govemnment ofﬁcjals and the

media relating to Valerie Wilson.
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LIBBY’s Graﬂd Jury Testimony

30. |  On or about Mérch 5 and March 24, 2004, LIBBY testified before Gral_;d Jury 03-3.
On each Qccasibn éf LIBBY ’s i.astimony, the foreperson of the Grand Jury administered the oath to
LIBBY and LIBBY swore to teil the truth in the test_i'mony ﬁe was about to give.

31. In ‘olr about March 2004, in the District of Columbia,

1. LEWIS LIBBY,
also known as “SCOOTER LIBBY,”

defendant herein, did knowingly and corruptly endeavor to influence, obstruct and impede the due

administration of justice, namely proceedings before Grand Jury 03-3, by misleading and _deceivlingr

. the grand jury as to when, and the manner and means by which, LIBBY acquired and subsequently

di{sclosed' to the media information concerning the employment of Valerie Wilson by the CIA.

32. It was part of the corrupt endeavor that during his grand jury testimony, defendant

- LIBBY made the following materially false and intentionally misleading statem‘ents and

representations, m substance, under oath:
a. When LIBBY spoke with Tim Russert of NBC News,'qn or about July 10,
2003: |
i Russert asked LIBBY if '_LIBBY knew that Wilson’s wife worked for
the CIA, and told LIBBY that all the reporters knew it; and
il At the time of this conversation, LIBBY was -suaprjs.ed'to hear that

Wilson’s wife worked for the CIA;

11
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b, LIBBY adx'ziséd Matthew Cooperof Time mégazin;: on oi ahout July' 12, 2003 R
that he had héard that other reporters were saying that Wilson’s wife worked forthe CIA, and further
advi‘seci him that LIBBY did not know whether this assertion was true; and

| c. LIBBY advised Judith Mi-llef of the New York Times on dr about July 12,
2003 that he had heard that other rei)orters were saying that Wilson’s wife Wlork_ed for the CIA but
LIBBY did not know whether that assertion was true.
33. . T was further part of the corrupt endeavor that at the tjme defendant LIBBY made
gach of the above-described materially false énd' intentionally misleédihg statéments and
Tepresentations ‘-to the grand jury, LIBBY was aware that they wer.é false, in th_at’:A
a. When LIBBY spoke with Tim Russert of NBC News on or about July 10,
2003
i Russert did not ask LIBBYif LIBBY knew that Wilson’s wife
worked for the CIA, nor did he fel_l‘_LIBBY that all the reporters knew: -
it; and |
. At the time of this coﬁ_-versa‘tion, LIBBY was weﬁ aware that
_Wilgon’s wife worked at the CIA; 1n fact, LIBBY-had participat_ed in
multip'le prior conversations concerning this topic, including on the
following occasions: |
. In or about early:.June. 2003, LIBBY léamed- from the Vice
President that Wilson’s wife worked for the CIA in the
Counterproliferation Division;

. On or about June 1 1,7.2.003, LIBBY was informed by a senior
CIA officer that Wilson’s wife was employed by the.CIA and.

that the idea of sending Him to Niger 'orig_iﬂated with her;
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On or about June 12, 2003, LIBBY was informed by the

- Under Secre’iary of State that Wilson’s wife worked for the

CIA;

On or about June 14, 2003, LIBBY" discussed “Joe Wﬂson
and “Valerle Wilson” with his CIA briefer, in the context of
Wilson’s trip to Niger; -

On or about June 23, 2003, LIBBY mformed reporter Judith
Miller that Wilson’s wife mi ight work at a burean of the CIA;

On or about July 7, 2-003, LIBBY advised the White House

" Press Secretary that Wilson’s wife worked for the CIA;

In or about June or July 2003, and in no case later than on or
about July 8, 2003, LIBBY was advised by the Assistant to
the Vice President for Public Affairs that Wilson’s wife
worked for the CIA; -

On or. about July 8, 2003, LIBBY advised reporter Judith

“Millerof his behef that Wﬂson swife worked at the CIA; and

On or about July 8, 2003, LIBBY had a discussion with the
Counsel to the Office of the Vice President concerning the
paperwork that would exist ifa person who was sent on an
overseas trip by the CIA had a spouse who worked at the
CIA; : '

LIBBY did not adv1se Matthew Cooper, on or about July 12, 2003, that

LIBBY had heard other reporters were saying that Wilson’s wife worked for the CIA, nor did

LIBBY advise hlm that LIBBY d1d not know whether this assertion was true; rather LIBBY

confirmed to Cooper, without qualification, that LIBBY had heard that Wilson’s wife worked at the

CIA; and

13
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‘. LIBBY did not advise Judith Mifler, on or dbout July 12, 2003, that LIBBY
had heard other reporters were saying that Wilson’s wife worked for the CIA, nor did LIBBY advise

her that LIBBY did not know whether this assertion was true;

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1503.

14



COUNT TWO
(False Statement})

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES:
1. The Gxan& Jury realleges Paragraphs 1-26 of Count One as though fully set forth
-herem. |
2. D_uring the course of the criminal iniresti_gation cond_uc-‘.ced_by the Federal Bureau of
Investigation and the Department of Justice, the folloyving matters, among othefs,. Ware\material to
tﬁat investigation: |
a:. Wheh, and the manner and me_anéby which, defendant LIBBY learned that
‘Wilson’s w:ife- was employed by the CIA;
b. Whether and when LIBBY disclosed to members of _ﬂ_}e media that Wilson’s
wife was employed by the CIA;
c. The Ia;}gu-agé used. by LIBBY in dis‘cl‘osing;any such, information to the
‘media, including whether LIBBY expressed uncertainty about the accuracy of any information he
may have disclosed, or described where hgé obtained the mfomation; and
d. L-IBBY’ S Knowledgé as to, W'hethelr any "'inform-ation “he disclosed was
classified at thé time he disclosed it. | |
é. On a;r about October 14 and Novémber 26, 2003, in th_e: District of quuml\jia,

 LLEWIS LIBBY,
also known as “SCOOTER LIBBY,”

defendant herein, did knowingly and willfully make a materially false, fictitious, and fraudulent

‘statement and representation in a matter within the jurisdi-Cfiﬁn of the Federa-l Bureau of

15




' Inves"tigatioh,. an E'ig't_é:ncy’ within the executive branch of the Uﬁited- States, m that the defendait, in -
~ response to questions posed to him by agents of the Féderal Bureau of mVe.sti_gation, stated that:
Puring a conversation with Tim Russert of NBC News on July 10 or 11, 2003,
Russert asked LIBBY if LIBBY was aware that Wilson’s wife worked for the CIA.
LIBBY responded to Russert that he did nof know that, and Russert re_plie‘d that all
the reporters knew it. LIBBY was surprised by this statement because, while
speaking with Russert, LIBBY did not recall that he previously had leained about
Wilson’s wife’s employment from the Vice President.
4, As defendant LIBBY well knew when he made it, this statement was false in that
 when LIBBY. spoke with Russert on or about July 10 or 11, 2003:

a. Russert did not ask LIBBY if LIBBY knew that Wilson’s wife worked for

- . the CIA, nor did he tell LYBBY that all the reporters knew it; and

b. At the time of this conversa-tion, LIBBY was well aware that Wilson’s wife.
- worked at the CIA;

In violation of Title 18, United States Code; Section I_OOI(a)(.’Z).

16




COUNT THREE
(False Statement)

THE GRAND JURY FU_RTH:_ER CHARGES:
1. The Grand Jury realleges Paragraphs 1 and 2 _éf Count Two as _théugh fully set forth
herein. | | |
2. Onor about October 14 and November 26, 2003, in the District of Columbia,

L. LEWIS LIBBY,
also known as “SCOOTER LIBBY,” .

defendant herein, did knowingly and willfully niake‘a materially falsel;, ﬁctitiousl, and fraudulent
stétemen_t and representation in a matter within .‘t-he ] m;is‘di;ction. of the Federal Bureau of -
Investigation, an ageﬁc.y within the eXecutiye- branch. of the United States, in that: ﬂl_e;defendant, m
response to questions posed. fo him by agents of the Federal Bureau of Tnvesti gation, stated that:
D_um'ng a cc’;rwersati_on with Matthew Cooper 0-_f Time magazinc on July 12, 2003,
LIBBY told Cooper that reporters were telling the-administration that Wilson’s wife.
worked for the CIA, but LIBBY did not know if this was true.

3. - Asdefendant LI_BBY well knew wﬂeg hé_ made it, this statement was false in that:
LIBBY did not advise Cooper on or | about July 12, 2003. that reporters were telling the
administration that Wilson’s wife W:or_ked_for the CIA, nor did LIBBY advise him that LIBBY did
not know whether this was true; rather, LIBBY confirmed for Coopcr, without qualification, that
LIBBY had heard thét WﬂSon’s wife worked at the CIA;

In.violation of Title 18, United. States Code, Section 1001(a)}(2):

17
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COUNT FOUR
(Perjury)

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES:

1.

herein,

The Grand Jury realleges Paragraphs 1-30 of Count One as though fully set forth

Og or about March 5, 2004, in the District of Columbia, .

I LEWIS LIBBY,
also known as “SCOOTER LIBBY,”

defendant herein, having taken an oath to testify truthfullyina proceeding b.efofs a.grand jury of the:

United States, knowingly made a false material declaration, in that he gave the following testimony

- regarding a conversation that he represented he had with Tim Russert of NBC News, on.or about July

10, 2003 (underlined portions alleged as false):

..And then he said, you }{IIDWLdId vou know that this — excuse me, did you know
that Ambassador Wilson's wife works at the CIA? And Iwas a little taken aback by
that. Tremeniberbeing taken aback by it. And Isaid— he may have said a little more '
but that was — he said that, And 1 said. no, I don't know that. And I said. 1 no, I'don't
know that 1ntr=nt10naHV because I didn't want him to take anything I was saying as in
any way confirming what he said. because at that point in.time I did not recall that
L had ever known, and 1 thought this is something that he was. telling me that 1 was
first learning, And-sol said; no, T don't know that because I want to be very careful
notto conﬁrm it for him; so that he dldn't take wmy slatement as oonﬁrmatmn for him.

Now, Fhad said earlier in the conversation, which I omitted to tell you, that
this — youknow, as always, Tim, our d1scussmn is off-the-record.if that’s okay with
you, and he said, that's fine.

So then he said - T said — he said, sorry —he, Mr, Russert said to me dldg{ou
know that: Ambassador Wﬂson s WIfe, or his wife, WGl”kS at the CIA? And I'said, no, -
Idon't know that. - And then he said. yeah - yes. all the reporters know it. And1said.
again, I don't know that. I just wanted to be clear that I wasn't conﬁnmng anything
for him on this. And you know. T was struck by what he was saving in that he
thought it was an Iy 'ortant fact but'I didn't ask him an ore gbout it because I

18




: =d1dn’t want. to be diggin ng_ in_on him, and he then moved on and finished the.
:.conversatlon something like that. -

3. I truth and fact, as LIBBY well knew when he gave this testimony, it was false in

that:

a.‘_ Russert did not ask LIBBY if LIBBY knew that Wﬂson swife Worked for

. the CIA, nor did he tell LIBBY that all the reporters knew it; and

b. At the time of this conversati.on, LIBBY was well aware that Wilson’s wife

- worked at the CIA;

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1623.
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COUNT FIVE
(Perjury)

- THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES:
| 1. The Grand Jury reélleges Paragtraphs 1-30 of Count (_)nq._ as though ﬁﬂly- set forth-
herein.
2. On or about March 5, 2004 _and,March 24,2004, in the District of Columbia,

L. LEWIS LIBBY,
also known as “SCOOTER LIBBY,”

defendant herein, having taken an Qath to testify truthfullyina proceediﬁg befofe a grand jury of the |
United States, k:nowiﬂgly made a falée*materia}_dec'laration, in that he gave the following testimony
regarding his conversaf-[ions with reportérs concerning the emplﬁ}ment of Joseph Wilson’s Wifé by
the CIA (underlined p_ortionis; alleged as false): "

a.  Testiinony Given on or about March 5; 2004 Regarding a Coﬁversation
'With Matthew Cooper on or Abont July 12, 2003:

Q. And it's your specific recollection that when you told Cooper about
Wilson's wife workirig at the CIA, you atmbuted that fact to what
reporters —

Al Yes.

—plural, were sa’ying. Correct?
Fwas very clear to say reporters are telling us that because inmy mind

I still didn't kmow it as a fact. 1 thoueht I was — all I had was this
1nf0nnat10n that ‘Was coming in from the reDorters

Q. Andat the same time you.have a specific recollection of telling him,
you don't know whether it's true or not, you're just tellmg him what
reporters are saying?
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© Yes, that's correct. siv. And I said, reporters are telling us that: 1 doa't -

know if 1t’s true. I'was careful about that becanse amon other {hines

I.wanted to be clear ] chdn't know Mr. Wilson:. 1 don't know — 1 think

Isaid, T don't knaw if he has a w1fe;0ut thls. is what we're hearing,

Testimony leen on or about March 24,2004 Regarding Conversatmns

Q.

‘With Reporters:

And let me ask you this directly. Did the fact that you knew that the
law could turn, the law as to whether a crime was committed, could
turn on whete you learned the information from, affect your aceount
for the FBI when you told them that you were telling reporters
Wilson's wife worked 4t the CTA but your source was areporter rather
than the Vice-President? |

No.1t's a fact. It was a fact, that's what 1 told the reporters.

And you're, you're cettain as you sit here today that every reporter you
fold that Wilsen's wife worked at the CIA, you sourced it back to
othet reporters?

Yes, sir, because it was important for what I was saying and because
it was — that's what — that's how I did it.

. The next set of questions from the Grand Jury are — concern this fact.

If you did not understand the information about Wilsor's wife to have
beéen classified and didn't understand it when you heard it from Mr.
Russert, whywas it that YDu were so deliberate to make sure that you
told other reporters that reporters were saying it and not assert it as
somethmg you knew? '

- I'want—1didn't want to — I didn't know if it was true and I didn't want

people — I didu't wart the reporters to think it was true because I'said
it. 1- all Lhad was that reporters are telling us that, and by that I

. Wanled them to understand it wasn't coming from me and that it

might not be true. Reporters write things that aren't true sometzmes

“or get things that aren't true. So.J wanted to be cléar they didn't, they
didn't think it was mesaving it. I didi't know it was'true and I wanted-
them to understand that. Also, it was 1mportant to me to Jet them:

know that because what I was tellmg them was that T don't know Mr.
Wllson We dldn’t ask for his mission. That I d1dn't see his report.
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‘Basically, we didn't know anything about hir until this stuff came out.
in Jume. -And among the other things, I didn't know he had a wife,
. That was one of the things I said to Mr. Cooper. 1don't know if he's
‘married. And so I wanied to be very clear about all this stuff that I
-didn't, T didn't know about him. And the only thing T had. 1 thoug];t
‘at the time c. Was what reporters. are teﬂmg us,

Well, talking to the other reporters about it, I don't see as & crime, What I
said to the other reporters is what, you know — Liold a couple Ieporters what
other reporters had told us, and T don't see that as a crime.

P
i

s ) : P 3 . In tmth and fact, as LIBBY well knew when he gave this testlmony, it was false in
; that LIBBY didnot advise Matthew C@oper or other reporters that LIBBY had heard other reporters
were saying that Wilson’s wife worked fo;_' the CIA, nor did LIBBY advise Cooper ov other reporters

o that L}"BBY: did not know whether this assertion was true;

In violation of Title 18, United States _Code, Section 1623.

ATRUBBILL:

" PATRICK J. FIFZGERALD
‘,Special_‘:CounSel
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